
 

For information relating to this meeting or to request a copy in another format or 
language please contact: 

Kate Spencer, Town Hall, Castle Circus, Torquay, TQ1 3DR  
01803 207014 

Email: scrutiny@torbay.gov.uk  

(i) 

 

 

Thursday, 29 November 2012 
 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD 
ADJOURNED MEETING 

 

A meeting of Overview and Scrutiny Board will be held on 
 

Friday, 30 November 2012 
 

commencing at 11.30 am 
 

The meeting will be held in the Meadfoot Room, Town Hall, Castle Circus, 
Torquay, TQ1 3DR 

 
 
 

Members of the Committee 

Councillor Thomas (J) (Chairman) 

Councillor Barnby 

Councillor Bent 

Councillor Darling (Vice-Chair) 

Councillor Hill 

 

Councillor Kingscote 

Councillor Pentney 

Councillor Stockman 

Councillor Pountney 

 

Co-opted Members of the Board 

Penny Burnside, Diocese of Exeter 

 

 

 

Working for a healthy, prosperous and happy Bay 



 

 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD 
AGENDA 

 
1.   Apologies  
 To receive apologies for absence, including notifications of any 

changes to the membership of the Committee. 
 

2.   Corporate Plan 2012 - 2015 (Pages 1 - 19) 
 Note:  The Chairman agreed to consider this issue as an urgent 

item at the meeting of the Board held on 21 November 2012.  The 
meeting was subsequently adjourned to allow for its publication. 
 
To consider the draft Corporate Plan and make any 
recommendations to Council. 
 



 

 

 

 

Meeting:   Overview and Scrutiny Board  Date:  30 November 2012 

Wards Affected:   All Wards in Torbay 

Report Title:   Corporate Plan 2012 - 2015 

Executive Lead Contact Details:   Councillor Ken Pritchard 

Executive Lead for Business Planning and 

Governance 

ken.pritchard@torbay.gov.uk 

07791 598091 

Supporting Officer Contact Details: Mark Bennett 

Executive Head – Business Services 

  mark.bennett@torbay.gov.uk 

  01803 207360 

 

1. Purpose 

1.1 To consider the draft Corporate Plan which clearly identifies the priorities the 
Council intends to deliver from now to 2015.  

2. Proposed Decision 

(i) The Overview and Scrutiny Board are asked to provide its comments and/or 
recommendations to the Council when it considers the Corporate Plan. 

3. Action Needed (following adoption by Council) 

3.1 That the Plan be published on the Council’s intranet and be forwarded 
electronically to key partners. 

3.2 All policies/strategies/work programmes supporting the Corporate Plan will require 
equality analyses. 

4. Summary 

4.1 Setting out our priorities will enable the Council to track progress against its 
priorities and enable Torbay's community to see how successful the Council has 
been in the delivery of its commitments. 

4.2 This plan needs to be considered against the backdrop of a reduction in funding 
from Central Government and limited opportunities for raising income through 
increases in charges.  The plan will enable the Council to focus on its published 

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



 

 

priorities and as part of its review of services determine where reductions can be 
considered. 

4.3 Publication of the Corporate Plan is required under the Council’s Constitution as a 
key decision. 

 
Supporting Information 

5. Position 

5.1 The Corporate Plan is a key element of the Council’s Policy Framework . 
 
5.2 It was previously a statutory requirement that councils produce a business plan 

bringing together their Medium Term Financial Strategy, service plans, objectives 
and performance outturns and targets. This requirement has been removed. 
However, the Council remains committed to robust business planning, openness 
and accountability to stakeholders and has, therefore, determined to set out its 
vision and approach in the Corporate Plan. 

 
5.3 The new format Corporate Plan will be the Council’s sole strategic plan, 

capturing and expressing in simple terms the Council’s direction and 
intentions for the years 2012 - 2015, and is attached to this report as Appendix 1. 
 

5.4 The plan identifies three principles around which decisions can be made and 

outlines nine clear priorities to ensure that services are targeted in securing a 

health, prosperous and happy bay; 

 
(i) Investing in the future 

• Develop a successful economy and improve job prospects 

• Ensuring that every child has access to a good school, and targeting 
support to ensure all young people reach their potential 

• Investing to improve quality of life and reduce long term costs to the 
community  

 
(ii) Protecting the Vulnerable 

• Investing in early intervention and prevention to reduce the number of 
children and families experiencing complex problems 

• Continue to protect the most vulnerable people from avoidable harm or 
abuse 

• Through adult social care, offering greater personalisation for service 
users and supporting residents to live healthy and independent lives 

 
(iii) Spending less money to greater effect  

• Targeting resources on our priorities 

• Increasing efficiencies 

• Making tough choices through disinvestment in low priority areas 
 

Page 2



 

 

At a strategic level the plan identifies how this will be achieved and our measures 
for success. Detailed performance measure will be developed by Executive Heads. 

 
6. Possibilities and Options 

6.1 Whilst there is no statutory requirement to produce a Corporate Plan, best practice 

suggests it is beneficial to produce such a document to communicate to key 

stakeholders (the community, partners, employees) our key priorities and activities 

in the short to medium-term. 

6.2 In addition to publishing the plan on the Councils internet site, a glossy printed 
version of the plan could be considered.  

7. Preferred Solution/Option 

7.1 Given financial constraints a glossy printed version of the plan cannot be justified. 

8. Consultation 

8.1 No specific consultation has been undertaken in the development of this plan, 
however results of consultation previously undertaken have been taken into 
account; 

• Improving the economy and job prospects have been a consistent priority 
for Torbay’s residents.  The plan seeks to achieve this and to help all 
members of our community to benefit from economic success. 

• Enabling people to live to live healthy and independent lives is well 
supported by Torbay’s residents as have other actions to help vulnerable 
people 

• The plan seeks to address issues identified in the Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment and through inspection reports including safeguarding 
inspections 

• The Overview and Scrutiny Board will be considering the plan at its 
adjourned meeting on 30 November. Their views will be reported following 
the meeting 
 

9. Risks 

9.1 Failure to set priorities for the coming years would be a significant risk, as it would 
leave the Council without clear direction of what it is trying to achieve and where to 
concentrate resources approved through the parallel budget setting process.  The 
Council would also be unable to communicate its priorities to the community and 
key partners and stakeholders. 

9.2 A further risk is that the priorities and supporting actions will not be delivered. 
Ensuring that the Corporate Plan and its activities are monitored through the 
Council’s performance management arrangements will mitigate this. 

Appendices 

Appendix 1 Corporate Plan 2012 - 2015 

Page 3



0
 

 

    

T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
2
 –
 1
5
 

 

W
o

rk
in

g
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

fo
r 

a
 P

ro
s
p

e
ro

u
s
, 

H
e
a
lt

h
y
 a

n
d

 H
a

p
p

y
 B

a
y
 

Agenda Item 2
Appendix 1

Page 4



1
 

 In
tr

o
d

u
c

ti
o

n
  

 T
h
e
 C

o
rp
o
ra
te
 p
la
n
 s
e
ts
 o
u
t 
th
e
 m

a
in
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
s
 f
a
c
in
g
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 o
u
r 
p
la
n
s
 f
o
r 
a
d
d
re
s
s
in
g
 t
h
e
m
. 
 I
n
 a
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 

c
lim

a
te
, 
th
e
re
 a
re
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
, 
b
y
 2
0
1
5
 w

e
 w

ill
 h
a
v
e
 2
8
 t
o
 3
5
%
 l
e
s
s
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 f
ro
m
 c
e
n
tr
a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t,
 b
u
t 
a
t 
th
e
 s
a
m
e
 t
im

e
 

w
e
 h
a
v
e
 i
n
c
re
a
s
in
g
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 f
o
r 
s
o
m
e
 o
f 
o
u
r 
c
o
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
 A
s
 a
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
w
e
 a
re
 s
e
tt
in
g
 c
le
a
r 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 f
u
tu
re
 a
n
d
 w

e
 a
re
 

d
e
te
rm

in
e
d
 t
o
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
 o
u
r 
s
p
e
n
d
in
g
 w

h
e
re
 i
t 
h
a
s
 t
h
e
 g
re
a
te
s
t 
im

p
a
c
t.
 S
o
 f
a
r 
w
e
 h
a
v
e
 s
o
u
g
h
t 
to
 p
ro
te
c
t 
fu
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 f
ro
n
t 
lin

e
 w

it
h
 

a
p
p
ro
x
im

a
te
ly
 £
3
 m

ill
io
n
 o
f 
o
u
r 
s
a
v
in
g
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
2
/1
3
 c
o
m
in
g
 f
ro
m
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 s
a
v
in
g
s
. 
  

 A
g
a
in
s
t 
th
is
 b
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
g
o
o
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
, 
c
o
m
p
le
ti
n
g
 a
 n
e
w
 l
ib
ra
ry
 a
n
d
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 c
e
n
tr
e
 i
n
 

P
a
ig
n
to
n
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 P
a
ig
n
to
n
 G

e
o
p
la
y
 P
a
rk
, 
a
 2
5
%
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 r
e
c
y
c
lin

g
, 
re
b
u
ild

in
g
 T
o
rq
u
a
y
 C

o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 C

o
lle

g
e
 a
n
d
 K
in
g
s
 A
s
h
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 

S
c
h
o
o
l,
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 P
a
rk
fi
e
ld
 f
a
c
ili
ty
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
, 
C
o
c
k
in
g
to
n
 C

o
u
rt
 S
e
a
c
h
a
n
g
e
 S
tu
d
io
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 B
ri
x
h
a
m
 F
is
h
 Q

u
a
y
. 

 W
e
 w

ill
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
, 
fo
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 b
e
tt
e
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
fa
m
ili
e
s
 w

it
h
 c
o
m
p
le
x
 n
e
e
d
s
. 
 

 B
y
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 i
n
w
a
rd
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t,
 w

e
 h
a
v
e
 s
e
c
u
re
d
 g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
fu
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
th
e
 b
u
ild

in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 S
o
u
th
 D

e
v
o
n
 L
in
k
 a
n
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 

T
o
rb
a
y
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 p
ro
s
p
e
r 
w
e
 w

ill
 f
o
c
u
s
 o
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 s
k
ill
s
 a
n
d
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
, 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 e
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 a
n
d
 

p
ro
v
id
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 t
o
 a
c
q
u
ir
e
 s
k
ill
s
. 
  

 W
e
 w

ill
 s
e
t 
c
le
a
r 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 t
a
rg
e
te
d
 i
n
 s
e
c
u
ri
n
g
 a
 h
e
a
lt
h
, 
p
ro
s
p
e
ro
u
s
 a
n
d
 h
a
p
p
y
 b
a
y
, 
th
ro
u
g
h
: 

 

•
 

In
v
e
s
ti

n
g

 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

u
tu

re
 

o
 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
e
c
o
n
o
m
y
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 j
o
b
 p
ro
s
p
e
c
ts
 

o
 
E
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
e
v
e
ry
 c
h
ild

 h
a
s
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 a
 g
o
o
d
 s
c
h
o
o
l,
 a
n
d
 t
a
rg
e
ti
n
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 y
o
u
n
g
 a
ll 
p
e
o
p
le
 r
e
a
c
h
 t
h
e
ir
 

p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

o
 
In
v
e
s
ti
n
g
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
lif
e
 a
n
d
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 c
o
s
ts
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
  

 

•
 

P
ro

te
c
ti

n
g

 t
h

e
 V

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 
o
 
In
v
e
s
ti
n
g
 i
n
 e
a
rl
y
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a
n
d
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
in
g
 c
o
m
p
le
x
 p
ro
b
le
m
s
 

o
 
C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 p
ro
te
c
t 
th
e
 m

o
s
t 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 p
e
o
p
le
 f
ro
m
 a
v
o
id
a
b
le
 h
a
rm

 o
r 
a
b
u
s
e
  

o
 
T
h
ro
u
g
h
 a
d
u
lt
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
, 
o
ff
e
ri
n
g
 g
re
a
te
r 
p
e
rs
o
n
a
lis
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 t
o
 l
iv
e
 h
e
a
lt
h
y
 a
n
d
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
liv
e
s
 

 

•
 

S
p

e
n

d
in

g
 l

e
s
s
 m

o
n

e
y
 t

o
 g

re
a
te

r 
e
ff

e
c
t 

 
o
 
T
a
rg
e
ti
n
g
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 o
n
 o
u
r 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

o
 
In
c
re
a
s
in
g
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
ie
s
 

o
 
M
a
k
in
g
 t
o
u
g
h
 c
h
o
ic
e
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 d
is
in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
in
 l
o
w
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 a
re
a
s
 

Page 5



2
 

  A
s
 w

e
 l
o
o
k
 f
o
rw

a
rd
 t
o
 2
0
1
3
 a
n
d
 b
e
y
o
n
d
, 
w
it
h
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 l
a
rg
e
r 
c
u
ts
, 
th
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 b
o
a
rd
 d
im

in
is
h
e
s
. 
T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
w
ill
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 c
h
o
ic
e
s
 a
b
o
u
t 
w
h
a
t 
to
 f
u
n
d
 a
n
d
 w

h
a
t 
n
o
t 
to
 f
u
n
d
. 
O
th
e
r 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
le
te
ly
 n
e
w
 w

a
y
s
 o
f 
w
o
rk
in
g
 w

ill
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 a
s
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
ro
d
u
c
ti
v
it
y
 o
r 
e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 a
lo
n
e
, 
a
re
 

u
n
lik
e
ly
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 t
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
. 
 T
o
 m

e
e
t 
th
e
 c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
s
 a
h
e
a
d
 w

e
 w

ill
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 c
h
o
ic
e
s
 a
b
o
u
t 
w
h
a
t 
to
 i
n
v
e
s
t 

in
 a
n
d
 w

h
a
t 
to
 c
u
t 
in
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
h
e
 r
a
d
ic
a
l 
e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
ie
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
. 
 

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
A

s
s
u

m
p

ti
o

n
s
  

L
o
c
a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
h
a
s
 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 a
 d
is
p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
a
te
 s
h
a
re
 o
f 
th
e
 s
p
e
n
d
in
g
 c
u
ts
 i
n
 c
o
m
p
a
ri
s
o
n
 w

it
h
 o
th
e
r 
p
u
b
lic
 s
e
c
to
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
 

T
h
e
 c
u
ts
 t
o
 l
o
c
a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
fu
n
d
in
g
 w

ill
 c
a
rr
y
 o
n
 a
s
 t
h
e
 g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 w

it
h
 i
ts
 d
e
fi
c
it
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
. 
T
h
is
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
r 

(2
0
1
2
/1
3
) 
is
 t
h
e
 s
e
c
o
n
d
 y
e
a
r 
o
f 
a
 f
o
u
r 
y
e
a
r 
s
e
tt
le
m
e
n
t1
 f
ro
m
 c
e
n
tr
a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t,
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
is
 s
e
tt
le
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
 l
o
c
a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
o
n
ly
 

re
c
e
iv
e
d
 a
 t
w
o
 y
e
a
r 
a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
 w

h
ic
h
 e
n
d
s
 t
h
is
 y
e
a
r.
  
 

 S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
p
o
lic
y
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
re
fo
rm

, 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 r
a
te
s
, 
th
e
 l
o
c
a
lis
m
 a
c
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 p
re
s
s
u
re
s
 p
la
c
e
d
 o
n
 u
s
 

d
u
e
 t
o
 a
n
 a
g
e
in
g
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 p
u
t 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
s
tr
a
in
 o
n
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
fi
n
a
n
c
e
s
. 
In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 t
h
e
 T
re
a
s
u
ry
 h
a
v
e
 m

a
d
e
 i
t 
c
le
a
r 
th
a
t 
fo
llo

w
in
g
 t
h
e
 

2
0
1
2
 b
u
d
g
e
t,
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 p
u
b
lic
 s
e
c
to
r 
s
p
e
n
d
in
g
 w

ill
 a
ls
o
 o
c
c
u
r 
in
 2
0
1
5
 t
o
 2
0
1
7
. 
A
ll 
o
f 
w
h
ic
h
 a
d
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
p
le
x
it
y
 o
f 
o
u
r 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
p
la
n
n
in
g
. 

 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 p
la
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 b
a
s
is
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
fu
n
d
in
g
 w

ill
 b
e
 p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t.
  

 In
v
o

lv
in

g
 t

h
e
 p

u
b

li
c
  

W
e
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
 t
h
a
t 
s
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 c
h
o
ic
e
s
 w

ill
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 c
lo
s
in
g
 d
o
w
n
 o
r 
re
d
u
c
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 p
ro
v
id
e
, 
b
u
t 
it
 a
ls
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 a
n
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 r
e
d
e
fi
n
e
 w

h
a
t 
a
n
d
 h
o
w
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
. 
 T
o
 d
o
 t
h
is
 w

e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 p
u
b
lic
 g
e
n
e
ra
lly
 a
n
d
 u
s
e
rs
 o
f 
s
p
e
c
if
ic
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 i
n
fo
rm

e
d
 a
n
d
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 r
e
-s
h
a
p
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
In
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
is
 w

e
 w

ill
: 

 

•
 

M
a
k
e
 m

o
re
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a
v
a
ila

b
le
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w

e
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 p
ro
v
id
e
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 o
u
r 
a
rm

s
 l
e
n
g
th
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
, 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
te
d
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 w

e
 g
iv
e
 t
o
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 B
a
y
. 

•
 

E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 a
re
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 a
t 
th
e
 s
ta
g
e
 w

h
e
n
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
. 

•
 

E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 p
u
b
lic
 a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 h
a
v
e
 s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
ti
m
e
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
y
 

c
a
n
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 t
h
e
ir
 v
ie
w
s
 i
n
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
w
a
y
s
. 
 

•
 

E
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 p
u
b
lic
 t
o
 e
n
g
a
g
e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 p
o
lit
ic
a
l 
d
e
c
is
io
n
 m

a
k
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 

   
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

1
 C

o
m

p
re

h
e

n
si

v
e

 S
p

e
n

d
in

g
 R

e
v
ie

w
 C

S
R

1
0

 

Page 6



3
 

    

    

In
v
e
s
ti
n
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu
re
 

 
 

Page 7



4
 

 D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
e
c
o
n
o
m
y
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 j
o
b
 p
ro
s
p
e
c
ts
 

W
e
 w

il
l 
a
c
h

ie
v
e
 t

h
is

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 
 

•
 

J
o
b
s
-l
e
d
 r
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

 

•
 

In
c
re
a
s
in
g
 i
n
w
a
rd
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
 

 

•
 

P
ro
m
o
ti
n
g
 T
o
rb
a
y
 a
s
 a
 t
o
p
 t
o
u
ri
s
t 
d
e
s
ti
n
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
in
 t
h
e
 

U
K
 

•
 

P
ro
te
c
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 m

a
k
in
g
 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 
o
f 
o
u
r 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
a
n
d
 

c
u
lt
u
ra
l 
a
s
s
e
ts
 

 

•
 

M
a
k
in
g
 i
t 
e
a
s
ie
r 
to
 g
e
t 
to
 a
n
d
 t
ra
v
e
l 
a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 B
a
y
 

 M
e
a
s
u

re
s
 f

o
r 

s
u

c
c
e
s
s
 

 

•
 

C
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 
T
o
rr
e
 A
b
b
e
y
 P
h
a
s
e
 T
w
o
 

 

•
 

K
e
e
p
in
g
 o
u
r 
k
e
y
 p
u
b
lic
 s
p
a
c
e
s
 c
le
a
n
  

 

•
 

O
u
tl
in
e
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
a
s
e
s
 p
re
p
a
re
d
 f
o
r 
fu
rt
h
e
r 
in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
in
 i
n
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
. 
 

 

•
 

C
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
 f
e
a
s
ib
ili
ty
 s
tu
d
y
 f
o
r 
a
 t
h
ir
d
 h
a
rb
o
u
r 
 

 

•
 

A
n
 a
d
o
p
te
d
 L
o
c
a
l 
P
la
n
 b
y
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 

 

•
 

A
d
o
p
te
d
 N

e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 P
la
n
s
 f
o
r 
T
o
rq
u
a
y
, 
P
a
ig
n
to
n
 a
n
d
 B
ri
x
h
a
m
 b
y
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 

 

•
 

C
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 
h
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 c
a
p
it
a
l 
p
ro
je
c
ts
 –
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 S
o
u
th
 D

e
v
o
n
 L
in
k
 r
o
a
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
2
0
1
5
 

 

•
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
fr
o
m
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
, 
g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 E
U
 

 

•
 

A
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 n
e
w
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 s
ta
rt
 u
p
s
 t
h
a
t 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
ri
v
e
 

 

•
 

In
c
re
a
s
in
g
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 i
n
 o
u
r 
th
re
e
 t
o
w
n
s
  

 

•
 

M
a
x
im

is
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
jo
b
 c
re
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 j
o
in
t 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 w

it
h
 n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
ri
n
g
 a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
n
g
 i
n
 a
 “
J
o
b
s
 

F
u
n
d
” 

Page 8



1
 

  E
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
e
v
e
ry
 c
h
il
d
 h
a
s
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 a
 g
o
o
d
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
a
n
d
 t
a
rg
e
ti
n
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 a
ll
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

re
a
c
h
 t
h
e
ir
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

W
e
 w

il
l 
a
c
h

ie
v
e
 t

h
is

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 
 

•
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
  
e
a
rl
y
 y
e
a
rs
 s
e
tt
in
g
s
 a
n
d
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
s
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
  

 

•
 

P
ro
v
id
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 c
h
ild

re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w

h
o
 a
t 
ri
s
k
 o
f 
u
n
d
e
ra
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
t 
 

 

•
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 t
o
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 a
c
a
d
e
m
ie
s
 w

h
e
re
 t
h
e
y
 c
h
o
o
s
e
 t
o
 d
o
 s
o
 

 

•
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 o
n
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
p
p
re
n
ti
c
e
s
h
ip
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s
  

 M
e
a
s
u

re
s
 f

o
r 

s
u

c
c
e
s
s
 

 

•
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a
tt
a
in
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
t 
K
e
y
 S
ta
g
e
 2
 a
n
d
 G

C
S
E
  

 

•
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 t
h
e
 a
tt
a
in
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 c
h
ild

re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

 

•
 

A
ft
e
r 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
a
g
e
, 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 e
it
h
e
r 
in
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
tr
a
in
in
g
 o
r 
e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 

   
 

Page 9



2
 

  In
v
e
s
ti
n
g
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 q
u
a
li
ty
 o
f 
li
fe
 a
n
d
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 c
o
s
ts
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
  

W
e
 w

il
l 
a
c
h

ie
v
e
 t

h
is

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 
 

•
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
in
g
 t
o
 c
re
a
te
 a
 s
a
fe
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
a
ll 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 v
is
it
o
rs
 

 •
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 w

o
rk
 w

it
h
 o
u
r 
p
a
rt
n
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 w

e
llb

e
in
g
 o
f 
o
u
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

 

•
 

Im
p
ro
v
in
g
 h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 w

e
llb

e
in
g
 t
h
o
u
g
h
 s
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 o
u
td
o
o
r 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

 

•
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w

it
h
 d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 m

a
in
ta
in
 t
im

e
ly
 a
n
d
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

 M
e
a
s
u

re
s
 f

o
r 

s
u

c
c
e
s
s
 

 

•
 

In
c
re
a
s
in
g
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 t
a
k
in
g
 p
a
rt
 i
n
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 w

a
lk
in
g
 a
n
d
 c
y
c
lin

g
 

 

•
 

S
p
o
rt
s
 c
lu
b
s
 a
n
d
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
ir
 o
w
n
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
fu
n
d
in
g
 

 
W
e
 w

ill
 a
ls
o
 p
la
y
 o
u
r 
p
a
rt
 i
n
 w

o
rk
in
g
 w

it
h
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 t
o
; 

 

•
 

K
e
e
p
 l
e
v
e
ls
 o
f 
c
ri
m
e
 l
o
w
 

 

•
 

E
n
a
b
le
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 f
e
e
l 
s
a
fe
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 h
o
m
e
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
 p
u
b
lic
 

p
la
c
e
s
 

 

•
 

E
n
s
u
re
 f
a
ta
lit
ie
s
 a
n
d
 s
e
ri
o
u
s
 i
n
ju
ri
e
s
 f
ro
m
 r
o
a
d
 t
ra
ff
ic
 

a
c
c
id
e
n
ts
 r
e
m
a
in
 l
o
w
 

 

•
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 h
e
a
lt
h
y
 l
if
e
 e
x
p
e
c
ta
n
c
y
, 
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 i
n
 o
u
r 
m
o
s
t 

d
e
p
ri
v
e
d
 w

a
rd
s
 

 

•
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 s
m
o
k
in
g
 d
u
ri
n
g
 p
re
g
n
a
n
c
y
  

 

•
 

P
ro
v
id
e
 d
ru
g
 u
s
e
rs
 w

it
h
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 t
re
a
tm

e
n
t 

 

•
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
  
a
lc
o
h
o
l 
re
la
te
d
 a
d
m
is
s
io
n
s
 t
o
 h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
 

 

•
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 l
e
v
e
ls
 o
f 
o
b
e
s
it
y
  

   

Page 10



1
 

 

 
  

 

     
P
ro
te
c
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 V
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 

 
 

Page 11



2
 

 In
v
e
s
ti
n
g
 i
n
 e
a
rl
y
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
h
il
d
re
n
 a
n
d
 f
a
m
il
ie
s
 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
in
g
 

c
o
m
p
le
x
 p
ro
b
le
m
s
  

 W
e
 w

il
l 
a
c
h

ie
v
e
 t

h
is

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 
 

•
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 w

it
h
 y
o
u
n
g
 c
h
ild

re
n
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 c
h
ild

re
n
’s
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
 

 

•
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 w

o
rk
 w

it
h
 o
u
r 
p
a
rt
n
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 i
n
 n
e
e
d
 

 

•
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
n
 I
n
te
n
s
iv
e
 F
a
m
ily
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 (
IF
S
S
) 
to
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 w

it
h
 c
o
m
p
le
x
 n
e
e
d
s
 

 

•
 

P
ro
v
id
e
 t
a
rg
e
te
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 F
a
m
ily
 I
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 P
ro
je
c
t 
(F
IP
) 

 

•
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 B
u
d
g
e
ts
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 w

it
h
 c
o
m
p
le
x
 n
e
e
d
s
 

 

•
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
ir
 s
k
ill
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 t
o
 g
a
in
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
 

 

M
e
a
s
u

re
s
 o

r 
s
u

c
c
e
s
s
 

 

•
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
d
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
  

 •
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 b
y
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 f
o
r 
fa
m
ili
e
s
 w

it
h
 c
o
m
p
le
x
 n
e
e
d
s
 

 
W
e
 w

ill
 a
ls
o
 p
la
y
 o
u
r 
p
a
rt
 i
n
 w

o
rk
in
g
 w

it
h
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 t
o
; 

 

•
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 t
e
e
n
a
g
e
 c
o
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 r
a
te
  

 

•
 

K
e
e
p
 l
e
v
e
ls
 o
f 
c
ri
m
e
 a
n
d
 a
n
ti
-s
o
c
ia
l 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
lo
w
 

 

•
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 c
la
im

in
g
 o
u
t 
o
f 
w
o
rk
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 

 

•
 

D
e
liv
e
r 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
s
t 
o
f 
fa
m
ili
e
s
 w

it
h
 c
o
m
p
le
x
 p
ro
b
le
m
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
u
b
lic
 p
u
rs
e

 
 

Page 12



3
 

 P
ro
te
c
t 
th
e
 m

o
s
t 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 p
e
o
p
le
 f
ro
m
 a
v
o
id
a
b
le
 h
a
rm

 o
r 
a
b
u
s
e
  

 W
e
 w

il
l 
a
c
h

ie
v
e
 t

h
is

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 
 

•
 

Im
p
ro
v
in
g
 o
u
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 c
h
ild

re
n
 

 

•
 

Im
p
ro
v
in
g
 o
u
r 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 f
o
r 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a
t 
ri
s
k
 

 

•
 

E
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 s
ta
ff
 a
re
 c
le
a
r 
a
b
o
u
t 
w
h
a
t 
to
 d
o
 w

h
e
n
 f
a
c
e
d
 w

it
h
 a
n
 i
n
c
id
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
b
u
s
e
 o
r 
w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
y
 s
u
s
p
e
c
t 
th
a
t 
a
 v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 a
d
u
lt
 i
s
 

b
e
in
g
 a
b
u
s
e
d
 o
r 
n
e
g
le
c
te
d
 

 

•
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ti
n
g
  
e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 b
a
s
e
d
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 p
ro
v
e
d
 t
o
 w

o
rk
 i
n
 t
a
c
k
lin

g
 t
h
e
 c
a
u
s
e
s
 o
f 
s
o
c
ia
l 
p
ro
b
le
m
s
 r
a
th
e
r 
th
a
n
 

s
im

p
ly
 d
e
a
lin

g
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
ir
 c
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
s
 

 

•
 

W
o
rk
in
g
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 w

it
h
 k
e
y
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 i
n
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 s
h
a
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 

 M
e
a
s
u

re
s
 f

o
r 

s
u

c
c
e
s
s
 

 

•
 

Im
p
ro
v
in
g
 t
h
e
 t
im

e
lin

e
s
s
 o
f 
in
it
ia
l 
a
n
d
 c
o
re
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 c
h
ild

re
n
’s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

 

•
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w

h
o
 a
re
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 a
 c
h
ild

 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 o
r 
b
e
c
o
m
e
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a
ft
e
r 

 

•
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 t
im

e
lin

e
s
s
 o
f 
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 c
a
re
 w

h
o
 w

e
re
 p
la
c
e
d
 f
o
r 
a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
  

 

•
 

R
e
d
u
c
in
g
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 a
 c
h
ild

 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 f
o
r 
a
 s
e
c
o
n
d
 o
r 
s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 
ti
m
e
  

  
  

 

Page 13



4
 

 In
 a
d
u
lt
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
, 
o
ff
e
ri
n
g
 g
re
a
te
r 
p
e
rs
o
n
a
li
s
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 t
o
 l
iv
e
 h
e
a
lt
h
y
 

a
n
d
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
li
v
e
s
 

 W
e
 w

il
l 
a
c
h

ie
v
e
 t

h
is

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 
 

•
 

‘S
e
lf
 D

ir
e
c
te
d
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
’ 
e
n
a
b
lin

g
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 w

h
o
 a
re
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a
s
 h
a
v
in
g
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
 c
le
a
r,
 u
p
 f
ro
n
t 

a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
m
o
n
e
y
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 c
a
n
 u
s
e
 t
o
 d
e
s
ig
n
 a
n
d
 p
u
rc
h
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
y
 n
e
e
d
 

 

•
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 r
e
ta
in
 t
h
e
ir
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
, 
a
llo

w
in
g
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 l
iv
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 o
w
n
 h
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
lo
n
g
e
r.
 

 

•
 

T
h
ro
u
g
h
 s
h
o
rt
 t
e
rm

 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
, 
h
e
lp
 p
e
o
p
le
 r
e
c
o
v
e
r 
th
e
 s
k
ill
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 t
h
e
y
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 s
ta
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 h
o
m
e
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

 M
e

a
s

u
r
e

s
 f

o
r
 s

u
c

c
e

s
s

 

 

•
 

A
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 p
la
c
e
d
 i
n
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
a
n
d
 n
u
rs
in
g
 h
o
m
e
s
 

 

•
 

P
e
o
p
le
 f
e
e
l 
in
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 o
w
n
 c
a
re
 

 

•
 

A
n
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 t
h
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
’s
 l
iv
e
s
  

 

•
 

C
a
re
rs
 f
e
e
l 
th
e
y
 a
re
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
  

      

    

Page 14



5
 

 

     

 

S
p
e
n
d
in
g
 l
e
s
s
 m
o
n
e
y
 t
o
 g
re
a
te
r 
e
ff
e
c
t 
 

 
 

Page 15



6
 

 T
a
rg
e
ti
n
g
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 o
n
 o
u
r 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

 W
e
 w

il
l 
a
c
h

ie
v
e
 t

h
is

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 
  

•
 

G
e
n
e
ra
ti
n
g
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
p
ri
o
ri
ty
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

 

•
 

C
a
rr
y
in
g
 o
u
t 
a
n
 u
rg
e
n
t 
re
v
ie
w
 o
f 
g
ra
n
t 
a
n
d
 l
o
a
n
s
 t
o
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 a
n
d
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 s
e
c
to
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
  

 

•
 

E
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
fu
n
d
in
g
 i
s
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
a
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 t
h
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
c
o
u
n
c
il 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

 

•
 

E
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 p
la
n
s
 a
re
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 f
o
r 
T
o
rb
a
y
 C

o
a
s
t 
a
n
d
 C

o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 T
ru
s
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 R

iv
ie
ra
 I
n
te
rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

C
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
 C

e
n
tr
e
 

 M
e
a
s
u

re
s
 f

o
r 

s
u

c
c
e
s
s
 

 

•
 

A
c
h
ie
v
in
g
  
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
in
g
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
 o
u
r 
p
ri
o
ri
ty
 a
re
a
s
 

  
   

 

Page 16



7
 

 In
c
re
a
s
in
g
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
ie
s
 

 W
e
 w

il
l 
a
c
h

ie
v
e
 t

h
is

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 
 

•
 

R
e
v
ie
w
in
g
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
tu
a
l 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 i
n
 o
u
r 
p
ri
o
ri
ty
 a
re
a
s
 a
s
 w

e
ll 
a
s
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 

v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
m
o
n
e
y
 

 

•
 

R
e
v
ie
w
in
g
 o
u
r 
o
w
n
 o
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 b
a
c
k
 o
ff
ic
e
 c
o
s
ts
, 
a
v
o
id
 d
u
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
ie
s
 

 

•
 

P
ro
m
o
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
in
g
 g
re
a
te
r 
u
s
e
 o
f 
o
n
lin

e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 b
y
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
  
 

 

•
 

E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 a
s
s
e
ts
  

 

•
 

W
h
e
re
 a
s
s
e
ts
 a
re
 n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 u
s
e
s
 a
re
 f
o
u
n
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 s
a
le
 o
r 
le
a
s
e
 

 M
e
a
s
u

re
s
 f

o
r 

s
u

c
c
e
s
s
 

 

•
 

R
e
d
u
c
in
g
  
th
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
o
ff
ic
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
o
p
e
ra
te
 f
ro
m
 

 

•
 

In
c
o
m
e
 f
ro
m
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
s
s
e
ts
 i
s
 m

a
x
im

is
e
d
 

 

•
 

S
a
v
in
g
s
 a
re
 g
e
n
e
ra
te
d
 f
ro
m
 a
ll 
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
o
s
e
 t
h
a
t 
a
re
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
te
d
 o
u
t 
 

 

•
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
o
n
lin

e
 t
ra
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
  

 
 

Page 17



8
 

 M
a
k
in
g
 t
o
u
g
h
 c
h
o
ic
e
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 d
is
in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
in
 l
o
w
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 a
re
a
s
 

 W
e
 w

il
l 
a
c
h

ie
v
e
 t

h
is

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 
 

•
 

E
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
o
u
r 
p
ri
o
ri
ty
 a
re
a
s
 a
re
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 J
o
in
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 N

e
e
d
s
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
(J
S
N
A
) 

 

•
 

R
e
v
ie
w
in
g
 a
ll 
o
f 
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
y
 a
re
 f
o
c
u
s
in
g
 o
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

 

•
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 p
la
n
s
  

 

•
 

W
h
e
re
 a
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 o
r 
p
a
rt
s
 o
f 
a
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
o
 n
o
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
o
u
r 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
, 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 w

ill
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 w

it
h
 

a
 v
ie
w
 t
o
 m

a
k
in
g
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
, 
o
r 
to
 s
to
p
 t
h
a
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

 

M
e
a
s
u

re
s
 f

o
r 

s
u

c
c
e
s
s
 

 

•
 

A
n
 u
p
 t
o
 d
a
te
 J
o
in
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 N

e
e
d
s
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
 (
J
S
N
A
) 
p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 a
n
n
u
a
lly
 

 

•
 

In
it
ia
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
s
 a
re
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
b
y
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
2
 a
n
d
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
n
n
u
a
lly
 

 

•
 

M
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 a
re
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 r
e
-s
h
a
p
in
g
 a
n
d
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

  
 

 

Page 18



9
 

 G
lo
s
s
a
ry
  

•
 

C
h

il
d

re
n

’s
 C

e
n

tr
e
s
 –

 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 w

it
h
 c
h
ild

re
n
 u
p
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a
g
e
 o
f 
fi
v
e
. 
T
h
e
y
 o
ff
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
ic
e
 o
n
 p
a
re
n
ti
n
g
, 
h
e
a
lt
h
, 
fa
m
ily
 

m
a
tt
e
rs
, 
le
a
rn
in
g
 a
n
d
 t
ra
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 c
h
ild

c
a
re
  

 

•
 

C
S

R
 -
 C

o
m
p
re
h
e
n
s
iv
e
 s
p
e
n
d
in
g
 r
e
v
ie
w

 
 

•
 

F
a
m

il
y
 I

n
te

rv
e
n

ti
o

n
 P

ro
je

c
t 
–
 T

h
e
 F

a
m

il
y
 I

n
te

rv
e
n

ti
o

n
 P

ro
je

c
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

o
 t

h
o

s
e
 f

a
m

il
ie

s
 t

h
a
t 

c
a
u

s
e
 a
 

d
is
p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
a
te
 a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
is
s
u
e
s
 (
s
u
c
h
 a
s
 a
n
ti
-s
o
c
ia
l 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r)
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 

 

•
 

In
te

n
s
iv

e
 F

a
m

il
y
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 –
 T
im

e
 l
im

it
e
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 p
ro
te
c
t 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a
n
d
 t
o
 m

a
in
ta
in
 a
n
d
 s
tr
e
n
g
th
e
n
 f
a
m
ily
 b
o
n
d
s
, 
to
 s
ta
b
ili
z
e
 a
 c
ri
s
is
 

s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
, 
to
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 f
a
m
ily
’s
 s
k
ill
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
e
te
n
c
e
s
, 
to
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
 t
h
e
 f
a
m
ily
’s
 u
s
e
 o
f 
a
 v
a
ri
e
ty
 o
f 
fo
rm

a
l 
a
n
d
 i
n
fo
rm

a
l 
h
e
lp
in
g
 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
  

 •
 

J
o

in
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 n
e
e
d

s
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
(J

S
N

A
) 
–
 T
h
e
 J
S
N
A
 a
n
a
ly
s
e
s
 a
n
d
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
s
 t
h
e
 h
e
a
lt
h
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
th
e
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 i
n
fo
rm

 a
n
d
 

g
u
id
e
 t
h
e
 s
e
tt
in
g
 o
f 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 w

it
h
in
 T
o
rb
a
y
. 

  
 

 

•
 

V
u

ln
e
ra

b
le

 A
d

u
lt

  
- 
a
 p
e
rs
o
n
 w

h
o
: 

“
m
a
y
 b
e
 i
n
 n
e
e
d
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 b
y
 r
e
a
s
o
n
 o
f 
m
e
n
ta
l 
o
r 
o
th
e
r 
d
is
a
b
ili
ty
, 
a
g
e
 o
r 
ill
n
e
s
s
: 
a
n
d
 w

h
o
 m

a
y
 

n
o
t 
b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 c
a
re
 o
f 
h
im

 o
r 
h
e
rs
e
lf
, 
o
r 
is
 u
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 p
ro
te
c
t 
h
im

 o
r 
h
e
rs
e
lf
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
h
a
rm

 o
r 
e
x
p
lo
it
a
ti
o
n

.”
  S

e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 

o
u
ts
id
e
 o
f 
th
is
 d
e
fi
n
it
io
n
 m

a
y
 a
ls
o
 b
e
 v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 t
o
 a
b
u
s
e
 d
u
e
 t
o
 l
o
w
 s
e
lf
-e
s
te
e
m
, 
s
o
c
ia
l 
e
x
c
lu
s
io
n
, 
d
ru
g
 o
r 
a
lc
o
h
o
l 
m
is
u
s
e
, 
o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 

h
is
to
ry
, 
h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
, 
d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 v
io
le
n
c
e
, 
e
th
n
ic
it
y
, 
im

m
ig
ra
ti
o
n
 s
ta
tu
s
, 
g
e
n
d
e
r 
o
r 
s
e
x
u
a
lit
y
. 

 

•
 

V
u

ln
e
ra

b
le

 C
h

il
d
 -
 T
o
 r
e
la
te
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
a
 d
iv
e
rs
e
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
: 
a
n
y
 c
h
ild

 i
n
 n
e
e
d
 (
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 d
is
a
b
le
d
 o
r 
v
e
ry
 s
ic
k
 c
h
ild

re
n
),
 

c
h
ild

re
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 p
e
ri
p
h
e
ry
 o
f 
c
a
re
, 
in
 c
a
re
, 
o
r 
w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 l
e
ft
 c
a
re
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 p
a
re
n
ts
 w

h
o
 m

a
y
 n
e
e
d
 h
e
lp
 f
o
r 
th
e
ir
 m

e
n
ta
l 

h
e
a
lt
h
, 
s
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 m

is
u
s
e
, 
le
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
, 
p
o
v
e
rt
y
 o
r 
o
th
e
r 
p
ro
b
le
m
s
 t
h
a
t 
m
a
y
 a
ff
e
c
t 
a
 c
h
ild

's
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 w

e
llb

e
in
g
. 

   

Page 19


	Agenda
	2 Corporate Plan 2012 - 2015
	Corporate Plan - Appendix 1


